ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2004
3:25 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 505

"An Act relating to inporting beer or wne for personal
consunption and a liquor license for that purpose, and to taxes
on beer or wine inported for personal consunption.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 453

"An Act exenpting from regulation under the Alaska Public
Uilities Regulatory Act wholesale agreenents for the sale of
power by joint action agencies and contracts related to those
agreenents, and joint action agencies conposed of public
utilities of political subdivisions and wutilities organized
under the Electric and Tel ephone Cooperative Act."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 450

"An  Act providing for a special deposi t for workers'
conpensation insurers; relating to the board of governors of the
Al aska Insurance Guaranty Association; relating to covered
wor kers' conpensation clains paid by the Al aska |nsurance
Guaranty Association; stating the intent of the |egislature, and
setting out limtations, concer ni ng t he interpretation,
construction, and inplenmentation of workers' conpensation |aws;
relating to restructuring the Alaska workers' conpensation

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2004



system elimnating the Alaska W irkers' Conpensation Board,;
establishing a division of workers' conpensation wthin the
Department of Labor and W rkforce Developnent and assigning
certain Alaska W rkers' Conpensation Board functions to the
division and the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent;
establishing a Wrkers' Conmpensation Appeals  Comm ssion;
assigning certain functions of the Al aska Wrkers' Conpensation
Board to the Wirkers' Conpensation Appeals Comm ssion; relating
to agreenents that discharge workers' conpensation liability;
providing for hearing officers in workers' conpensati on
proceedi ngs; relating to workers' conpensation awards; relating
to an enployer's failure to insure and keep insured or provide
security; providing for appeals from conpensation orders;
relating to workers' conpensation proceedings; providing for
suprene court jurisdiction of appeals from the Wrkers'
Conpensati on Appeal s Commi ssion; providing for a nmaxi mum anount

for the cost-of- l|iving adjustnent for workers' conpensation
benefits; providing for admnistrative penalties for enployers
uni nsur ed or wi t hout adequat e security for wor ker s’

conpensation; relating to assigned risk pools and insurers; and
providing for an effective date."”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 505

SHORT TITLE: ALCOHOL LI CENSI NG CONNO SSEUR LI CENSE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KOTT

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 27/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

Bl LL: HB 453
SHORT TI TLE: JO NT ACTI ON AGENCI ES
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) HEI NZE

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 27/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER
SUE STANCLI FF

House Majority Ofice
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2004



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Pr esent ed HB 505 on behal f of
Representative Kott, sponsor.

BOB BAI LEY

Al aska Wne and Spirits Wol esal ers Associ ati on
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 505.

MATT JONES

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 505, saying it gives
t he consuner fewer choices.

DOUG GRI FFI'N, Chai rman

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 505.

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEI NZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 453.

JON BI TTNER, Staff

to Representative Cheryll Heinze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 453 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Hei nze, sponsor, and answered questi ons.

JOE GRIFFI TH, Chief Executive Oficer

Chugach El ectric Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 453.

TOM LOVAS, Chief Executive Oficer

Four Dam Pool Power Agency

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Gave background information on joint action
agenci es and answered questions.

JI M PCSEY, Ceneral Manager

Muni ci pal Light and Power

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 453.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2004



TUCKERVAN BABCOCK, Manager

Governnment and Strategic Affairs

Mat anuska El ectric Associ ation

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 453.

MARK JOHNSON, Commi ssi oner

Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

Department of Community and Regional Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 453.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-20, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE CHAIR GATTO called the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:25 p.m Representatives Gatto,
Dahl strom Crawford, and Quttenberg were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Anderson, Lynn, and Rokeberg arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 505- ALCOHOL LI CENSI NG CONNO SSEUR LI CENSE

VICE CHAIR GATTO announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 505, "An Act relating to inporting beer
or wine for personal consunption and a liquor |icense for that
purpose, and to taxes on beer or wne inported for personal
consunption.”

Number 0089

SUE STANCLI FF, House Mjority Ofice, Alaska State Legislature,
introduced HB 505 on behalf of Representative Kott, sponsor.
She explained that the bill would require individuals who inport
beer and wi ne for personal consunption to acquire a license from
the Al coholic and Beverage Control Board ("ABC Board") prior to
inporting wine and beer, and to pay the alcoholic beverage tax,
the excise tax, on those inports through the Departnent of
Revenue.

M5. STANCLIFF said the Twenty-first Amendnent [to the federal
constitution] grants states the authority to regulate taxation,
distribution, and sale of alcoholic beverages; the key provision
in that anmendnment reads: "The transportation or inportation

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2004



into any State, Territory, or Possession of the United States
for the delivery or use therein of intoxicating liquors, in
violation of the |aws thereof, is hereby prohibited."

Number 0207

M5. STANCLIFF noted that the nmjority of states require
consuners to purchase alcoholic beverages from retailers
licensed by the state. This "three-tiered systeni’ is what
Al aska adopted at statehood and has used successfully for nearly
half a century. However, technology, primarily in the form of
direct purchasing of alcohol over the Internet, threatens the
system in Al aska. An estimated $1 billion-plus in alcohol is
illegally shipped to consuners in the U S., thereby avoiding
state taxation and state laws that prohibit the sale of alcoho
to mnors. This bill would establish a framework for control of
al cohol sales via the Internet and to attenpt to avoid sone
problens identified in the Lower 48 with the sale of al cohol.

Nunber 0324

M5. STANCLIFF, in response to a question from Representative
Dahl strom said enforcenent would fall to the ABC Board. She
acknow edged the difficulty of enforcenent and indicated the
intention isn't to spend a lot of noney on enforcenent. She
related that other states wth simlar laws wuse it as a
deterrent, a notification to the public that this type of
activity is illegal. Ms. Stancliff offered her belief that
m nors are purchasing alcohol via the Internet.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked how a custoner provides proof of
age for an Internet transaction.

MS. STANCLIFF replied that it is often necessary to fax a copy
of identification to the seller. An Al askan who traveled to
California and returned with a case of wine wouldn't be in
violation of this proposed |aw, since the product wouldn't have

been shipped in. She specified that the purpose of this bill is
to gather shipping revenues through taxation and |icensing. In
this bill the two-year connoisseur license for wne carries a
fee of $100.
Nunmber 0616
REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked: If a California wnery wanted

to ship a case of wine, would that transaction be covered by
this bill?

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2004



MS. STANCLI FF said she believes, but isn't certain, that al cohol
shi pped into the state woul d be covered.

Nunmber 0667

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if the cost of the connoisseur
| i cense woul d be prohibitive.

M5. STANCLIFF replied that, for her, the primary concern is
| egality rather than expense.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD asked what the cost to the state would
be for issuing these licenses that he believes are expensive.

M5. STANCLIFF replied that the Departnment of Revenue or [the
Division of Qccupational Licensing in the Departnment of
Community & Econom c Devel opnment (DCED)] m ght be better able to
respond. She said she believes the fiscal note was based on
costs that ot her states wth simlar | egi sl ation have
experi enced.

Nunmber 0807

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if this legislation would affect even one
bottl e of wine comng through the mail.

MS. STANCLIFF replied, "It does affect even one bottle. If you
are a nenber of wine-of-the-nonth club - one bottle."

CHAIR ANDERSON asked what penalties would result from this
| egi sl ati on.

M5. STANCLI FF replied that the provider who breaks the | aw woul d
have commtted a class C felony. She read from Section 5,
page 3, subsection (d).

CHAI R ANDERSON asked about the procedure if a person has bought
a bottle of wine through a w ne-of-the-nonth club and doesn't
have a connoi sseur's |icense.

MS. STANCLIFF replied that violating this law would result in a
class A msdeneanor for the person purchasing the wne; the
Wi nery that provided the wine would be guilty of a class C
f el ony.

Number 1003

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2004



VI CE CHAI R GATTO renar ked:

| can order a bottle of wne and if | get -caught,
spank ny hand and | won't order any nore. If | don't
get caught, | can order wine all day and all night and
all week and all year until | get caught. Now, on ny
next offense |I'm subject to penalty. I'"'m going to

guess that if a person wants a bottle of wne, they
are probably not going to get caught.

M5. STANCLI FF offered that when people want a bottle of w ne,
they usually buy one at a local liquor store, rather than order
it over the Internet. She said she didn't believe people were
readily violating the law, but could also understand Vice Chair
Gatto's point.

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked, if his sister sent hima bottle of w ne,
whet her she would be in violation.

M5. STANCLI FF responded that she didn't know, but that this is a
concern and nmay require an anendnent because the intent of the
bill is to prevent mnors from ordering alcohol through the
Internet, and as a revenue-generating tax. She al so expressed
concern for the dry communities in Alaska that can bring in
al cohol through the Internet.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN questi oned whether nmany mnors order al cohol
via the Internet.

Nunber 1209

BOB BAILEY, Alaska Wne and Spirits Wholesalers Association,
Anchorage, said his association supports restricting the direct
shi prent of al cohol into Alaska for three min reasons:
preventing the sale of alcohol to mnors; addressing shipnents
into dry comunities; and tax revenue that isn't comng to the
state, but should be. He related that there has been an
increase in Internet ordering of alcohol into Al aska and that
while there are providers who are diligent about checking
i dentification, this doesn't preclude soneone from using
anot her's identification.

MR. BAILEY spoke to the increase in the alcohol excise tax that
went into effect October of 2002. He said Alaska has the
hi ghest al cohol excise tax in the US., and this provides a
legitimate financial reason for sonmeone to order alcohol from

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2004



out of state, in particular, |lowpriced, |ow weight |iquor goods

in plastic bottles. He infornmed the committee that when
Al aska's alcohol tax is over $30 a case, that pays for the
freight quickly. He said Alaska is only one of two states in

the U S. that have no restrictions on direct sale of alcohol.
He gave an exanple of a wnery in California that can legally
ship directly to anyone in Al aska, but said an Al askan |icensed
retailer is unable to do so.

Nunmber 1399

MR. BAILEY pointed out that enforcenment would be necessary, but
opined that the felony provision would be the primary deterrent.
He predicted that w neries would oppose this bill, since they'd
prefer the status quo that allows themto ship freely. He also
surmsed they'd notify custonmers of a change in the law so
they'd be in conpliance. He noted that the process for the
| egitimate connoi sseur includes getting a l|license; getting the
appropriate shipping label; and sending it to the provider,
who' d then be alerted that shipping to Al aska was | egal.

Nunmber 1436

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked for clarification of which states
al | ow shi ppi ng of al coholic beverages.

MR. BAILEY pointed to a nap. He noted that states can use
federal courts to enforce their |iquor |aws.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD expressed concern that the process was
conplicated and the cost of the |icense onerous.

MR. BAILEY noted that this bill is patterned on a bill from
Montana and that the actual cost of the Ilicense could be
changed. He indicated support for the felony penalty.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how many connoi sseurs in Al aska would
apply for this license.

MR. BAILEY replied that he didn't know, but Mntana had issued
18 of these licenses since passing a simlar |aw He stressed
that this legislation, because of the felony provision, is
focused on providers of alcohol. In further response, he
reiterated the three projected areas of inpact from the bill

collection of taxes, aid in preventing mnors' consunption, and
aid in preventing alcohol from getting to dry comunities. He
added that in sonme cases, up to 10 percent of alcohol that goes

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2004



to mnors was purchased via the Internet in other states, but
there are no related statistics for Al aska.

MR. BAILEY, in response to further questions from Representative

Lynn, admtted the revenue from this  Dbill woul dn't  be
substanti al . He nentioned the anmount the state is losing on
cheap liquor being shipped into the state by people who want to
avoid paying the state tax of $30 a case. Likening it to the

state's efforts to tax tobacco, he noted that the industry pays
over $30 mllion a year in alcohol tax into the general fund
and suggested sone of that could pay for this bill

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD agreed the felony provisions in the bill
are good, but questioned the amount for the |license fee.

MR. BAILEY agreed with Representative Crawford.
Nunmber 1860

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Bailey to address the
benefits that this bill would bring to |ocal business owners.
She al so asked M. Bailey to state his major concern.

MR. BAILEY said it wasn't possible to neasure the benefit at
this point. He said his major concern is consunption by mnors,
specifically, "regulating that the people who shouldn't get it
don't get it."

Number 1943

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surm sed that probably the major effect
woul d be prohibiting the purchase of spirits via the Internet.
He asked whether that is correct.

MR. BAI LEY replied:

Right now, we suspect that inexpensive liquor |ike
vodka in plastic bottles, which nmay or nmay not be
going to bootleggers - we have no idea where it's

going - that would be prohibited conmpletely by this.
The only thing allowed through the connoisseur's
license is the purchase of wine or beer, not spirits.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG recounted his personal experience with a
California vineyard. He said the genuine connoi sseurs woul dn't
be affected as much as the wi ne-of-the-nonth club custonmers. He
noted that this bill prohibits the illegal purchase, over the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2004



Internet primarily, of spirits, wne, and beer. It thus
maintains the integrity of the three-tiered system wth
regul ation of the manufacturer, wholesaler, and retailer. He
referred to cyberspace as the fourth tier that needs regul ation.
He asked if M. Bailey thought there was a sense of fairness
i nvol ved, since in-state people were paying taxes but out-of-
state people weren't.

Nunber 2113

MR. BAILEY said his association had attenpted to pass this
| egislation in the past, and the increased alcohol excise tax
provi ded further inpetus for HB 505.

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked whether a person could, at this tine, go
to the Internet and order wine legally.

MR. BAILEY replied that retailers have to purchase products
through whol esalers who are, in turn, designated by the
supplier. Individuals can order over the Internet, and
retailers can order over the Internet but cannot |egally put
that product in their stores for resale.

VI CE CHAI R GATTO asked about the urgency of this bill

MR. BAILEY said one could infer that the high use of the
Internet in Alaska has resulted in a higher-than-average rate of
ordering alcohol over the Internet, which has resulted in |ost
revenue to the state.

CHAI R ANDERSON said he supported the bill, but didn't think
m nor consunption was an issue, and also felt the excise tax was
too high in Al aska, so that he wasn't overly concerned about the
| ost revenue. He said he did believe, however, that the dry-
comunity issue in Al aska was a salient point.

Number 2338

MATT JONES, Anchorage, testified that he thought it inportant to
clarify that Mntana is a "control state" where the sale and
distribution of alcohol is controlled by the state, so there is
a vested interest in reducing sales of "non-state-sold al cohol."
However, Alaska is a "license state" where alcohol is sold by
private conpani es.

TAPE 04-20, SIDE B
Number 2372

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2004



MR. JONES said he understood and supported the need to collect

taxes, as well as the need to Kkeep alcohol out of dry
comunities and away from m nors. He wasn't sure beyond these
effects what the purpose of this bill was. He said the bill
would result in out-of-state wneries' not wanting to deal wth
shipping to Alaska because of the added regulation. He
suggested this would be unfortunate because liquor stores in
Al aska don't carry every wine, and he felt that as a consuner
his choices would be dimnished. He proposed that the
| egislature could regulate the sale of hard liquor over the
Internet with another bill, rather than HB 505.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG read from the bill, page 2, Section 3.
He asked, "So, there's a requirenent of registration. Do you
think these wneries will not register with the board and
therefore will not send you any w ne?"

MR. JONES said his concern was nore than that, since the w nery
or brewery has to obtain a general wholesale |icense and get a
regi stered agent, and these requirenents of the bill constitute
a burden for a small wi nery or brewery.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cl arified that the current |aw requires
obtaining a general wholesale |icense, appointing an agent, and
obtaining other applicable Iicenses. He said subsection (b)
actually nakes it |ess cunbersone, since the business could sel
Wi ne directly to the consuner w thout a whol esale |icense.

MR. JONES asked why there is a limt on the nunber of cases of
w ne he can buy, since this would also Iimt revenue fromtaxes.

Nunmber 2145

DOUG GRI FFI N, Chairman, Alcoholic Beverage Control Boar d,
Department of Public Safety, said the amount of alcohol com ng
into the state due to the Internet sales is unknown. He said
this bill would not be a |large revenue-generator. He noted that
he suspects there have been occurrences of wunderage people
getting alcohol through the Internet, but had never received a
conpl aint about this. He thought increased use of the Internet
woul d be an indicator that the ABC Board had done a good job of
reduci ng access to al cohol for underage persons.

MR. GRIFFIN said he wasn't aware of the cheap spirits M. Bailey

had referred to, and felt this bill was ainmed primarily at
fairly high-end w ne. He comented that this is part of a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2004



nati onw de battle between w neries, which argue they can't get
their product to be carried by whol esal ers, and whol esal ers who
feel that wineries are avoiding taxation, that underage people
may have access to alcohol, and that taxes aren't being paid by
t hese direct shipnent routes. He surm sed this battle is ripe
for adjudication before the U 'S. Supreme Court, since circuit
courts have ruled in favor of the Twenty-first Amendnent, saying
states have the right to regulate alcohol, and also in favor of
the interstate comerce clause, saying states could not limt
the ability of people to carry out conmmerce between states.

Nunber 1948

CHAI R ANDERSON said he had sone concerns and thought it better
to hold the bill until next week. [HB 505 was held over.]

HB 453-JO NT ACTI ON AGENCI ES

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 453, "An Act exenpting from regul ati on under
the Alaska Public Uilities Regulatory Act whol esal e agreenents
for the sale of power by joint action agencies and contracts
related to those agreenents, and joint action agencies conposed
of public wutilities of political subdivisions and utilities
organi zed under the Electric and Tel ephone Cooperative Act."

Nunmber 1875

REPRESENTATI VE = CHERYLL HEI NZE, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
sponsor, introduced HB 453. She referred to a chart that
illustrated upgrades needed for the Railbelt area electrica
grid, noting that the transmssion lines date to the 1950s and
that generation assets are 20 to 30 years old. She said
Al aska's energy infrastructure is in desperate need of an
upgr ade. According to the Railbelt Energy Study, the cost of

bui | di ng, upgr adi ng, and rmaintaining these upgrades IS
anticipated to be around $5 billion. She predicted the cost of
new generators alone over this period would be $750 mllion, or

$2,000 for every resident along the Railbelt. She believed that
the House and Senate recognized this when they passed HCR 21,
establishing the Joint Energy Policy Task Force.

Nunmber 1793
REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE expl ai ned that HCR 21 nmandated the review

and analysis of the state's long-term energy needs, and asked
the task force to develop a long-term energy plan to efficiently

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2004



enhance Al aska's economc future. She comented that one of the
maj or recomrendations nmade by the task force was that the state
pronote unified operation of a Railbelt generation and
transm ssion system The unified system operator would be in a
position to undertake the financial obligation of upgrading the
Rai | bel t. She pointed out that each conpany alone couldn't be
responsible for the $5 billion cost, but she thought several
conpani es toget her coul d.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said this bill makes slight changes to the
joint action agency (JAA) statute, AS 42.45.300, specifically
changi ng | anguage to exenpt contracts from regulation.
Contracts made by the JAA with another public utility for the
sale of power, storage, regeneration, or wholesale repurchase
under a whol esal e agreenent woul d be an agreenent between two or

nore willing and capable parties. Any dispute would be handl ed
under contract | aw She urged the comrittee to support this
bill. She indicated she'd spoken with nmenbers of the utilities

in the Rail belt and had addressed their concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE focused attention on two questions she'd

asked Legislative Legal and Research Servi ces. First, do the
exenptions given to JAAs in this bill apply to the retail rates
of the individual utilities and cooperatives that are nenbers of
the agency? She said the answer is no. This won't affect
retail rates; it only affects the sale of wholesale power. And
second, wll this bill affect existing contracts between

individual utilities? Again, she said, the answer is no. A new
| aw won't operate to nodify existing contracts.

[ Chair Anderson passed the gavel to Vice Chair Gatto.]
Number 1633

JON BITTNER, Staff to Representative Heinze, Alaska State
Legislature, testified that in Decenber 2003 the task force
report on the electrical system in the Railbelt was released

In its long-term energy needs section, the report said, wthin
the next 20 years it was determned that Alaska will need to
provide energy infrastructure for economc developnent, to
establish a unified system of operation, and to replace aging
generation [facilities]. He said HB 453 aids the Railbelt
utilities in achieving these needs and provides a stronger
framework in the statutes that |arge business enterprises like a
Rai | bel t JAA woul d need.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2004



MR. BITTNER explained that this bill would ensure the utilities
could assune the economc |everage they need to replace aging
generators and old transm ssion |ines. He commented that
Al aska's energy infrastructure is in need of repair and
repl acenent. According to the task force report released in
January 2004, nost of the Railbelt's generation capacity is 20
to 40 years old and wll becone nore costly to maintain and
repl ace. He concluded that the JAA being created by Chugach
El ectric Conmpany ("Chugach Electric"), Minicipal Light and Power
(M.&P), and CGolden Valley Electric Association (GVEA) wll fill
the need to resol ve these issues.

Nunber 1574

MR. BITTNER continued, saying the Railbelt report makes two
things clear. First, the cost of upgrading Al aska's
infrastructure will continue to increase. Second, there is a
need for a unified system operator. He said HB 453 helps to
address these issues by providing support for Alaska's

generation-transm ssion facilities that nust undertake a huge
financial burden to naintain and expand the Railbelt's energy
infrastructure. He opined that utilities would gladly undertake
the necessary inprovenents if they could. Al they need from
the legislature are better tools to devel op them

MR. BITTNER explained that with whol esale power agreenents and

infrastructure inprovenents exenpt from conventional rate
regul ation, the participating utilities would feel secure in
commtting to the necessary |arge-scale projects. Far from

renoving all oversight from whol esal e power agreenents, he said,
HB 453 woul d renove an unnecessary burden of regulatory scrutiny
of wholesale power sales contracts and sinply nmake the
utilities' transactions subject to contractual |aw, as are nost
ot her contracts. The involved parties would nake an agreenent
based on a nutually acceptable contract that would cover all
aspects of the transaction over the course of that contract.
M. Bittner suggested if this unnecessary, onerous burden is
renoved, the new Railbelt partnership will further reduce costs
to consuners, and said this deregulation is entirely in line
W th existing JAA guidelines and statutes.

Number 1500
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said Chugach Electric had assured him

this bill doesn't affect consuners. However, if wholesale rates
doubled, this would surely affect the rates that consuners pay,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2004



and he knew of no entity other than RCA [Regul atory Conmi ssion
of Al aska] that protects the consuner

MR. BITTNER replied that this bill wouldn't renove regul ations
to retail custoners, and that RCA would still regulate rates for
t hem He said the federal antitrust |laws would cover nost rate
changes for the whol esal e agreenents as wel | .

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE proposed that one of the utility conpanies
i nvol ved shoul d answer Representative Crawford's question, since
t hey have nore experti se.

Number 1371

JOE CGRIFFITH, Chief Executive Oficer, Chugach Electric Conpany,
Anchorage, testified in support of HB 453, saying costs of the
generation and transmssion of power wll be passed to the
ultimate consuner, since that's the only source of noney to pay
for the generation and transm ssion system He inforned the
commttee that in places that don't have sufficient conpetition,
where there are cases of over-nonopolistic service territories,
RCA has the responsibility to regul ate.

MR CGRIFFITH pointed out that this does not describe the
proposed JAA, and said he thought the assunption was that the
JAA mght not do business in a proper and appropriate manner
But, he pointed out, it wouldn't rmake good business sense to the
JAA to price-gouge, and it's against the |aw. He asserted that
they'd do business in a reasonable mnner and charge a
reasonabl e anount for their product, with margins, just as they
do today. He pointed out that in 38 or 40 states the whol esal e
power and the distribution of the retail [ power] isn't
regul at ed. He said Alaska is wunique in this matter. He
explained that the current wholesale contracts that Chugach
Electric has couldn't be regulated if they hadn't witten
regulation language in to start wth, when they nmade the
contracts. He said he didn't see deregulation as a problem

Nunmber 1269

VICE CHAIR GATTO renmarked, "Utilities, by their very nature, are
not a free-nmarket enterprise.”

MR. GRIFFI TH responded that the whol esale side of the business
generally is.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2004



VICE CHAIR GATTO replied that the utility isn't a free-market
enterprise, since there is no conpeting utility with paralle
power lines running down the road that custoners could take
advant age of. He further said the only thing in place to
prevent a nonopoly was a regul atory conm ssion.

MR GRIFFITH replied that this was correct for public utilities,
but not for JAAs, which aren't a public utility.

VICE CHAIR GATTO read from the bill, saying, "In the very first
words of the bill, "An Act exenpting from regulation', and in
the second word [line 2], 'wholesale agreenents for the sale of
power'." Noting that he lives in the Matanuska-Susitna area, he
remar ked, "We purchase our power whol esale, and very recently,
within the last year, there was a lawsuit that said, ... 'W
have been overcharged,' and the court said, 'Yes, you have.'"
He asked whether that is correct.

Nunmber 1086

MR GRIFFITH replied that Vice Chair Gtto was not exactly
correct. He expl ai ned:

It was a rate case, ... the first one that Chugach
Electric had taken forward since 1987. And in that
rate case we asked for a ... refundable rate increase.

W were granted that and then, through the process
before the regulatory comm ssion, they determ ned that

those rates ... we asked for were not the ones that
should be placed, in fact. So we refunded the noney
we had collected. There wasn't any overcollection

from the standpoint of price-gouging or anything; it
was that the rate-case determ nation was different.

VI CE CHAI R GATTO responded:

And so the regulatory comm ssion, then, was the savior

for protecting the consuner indirectly, because
Mat anuska Electric refunded that noney to the
consuners in their service area. That, ... to nme, was
a very novel occurrence in that this commi ssion was
the protector of this consuner. And wi thout this

comm ssion, this consunmer would not have had any
refund, and that's what the decision was, that indeed
t he consuner deserved a refund because of the rate
appl i cation change.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2004



VWhether or not there was an error, renenber that
Wi thout -- that's why ... 1'm concerned about this
exenpting from regul ation. Quite frankly, it scares
me. And | think that any public utility, by its very
nature of being a nonopoly, certainly can have an
agreenent with a union and say, "OK, you want an extra
$5 an hour? It doesn't matter to us. Just cone back
to work, because all we've got to do is pass it on."
Wthout a ... regulatory agency, we, the consuner, are
in one pot of trouble. AmI correct?

MR CRIFFITH replied that he couldn't entirely agree, and
reiterated that JAAs aren't public utilities, but are
whol esal ers of generation and transm ssion assets. He said
contracts for generation, transmssion facilities, and |[abor
aren't scrutinized or regulated by RCA except after the fact,
and then only because the authority to do this is witten in the
contracts. He pointed out that the utilities thenselves wote
regulation into the contracts, and said he didn't think there
was evidence to say there'd been any exanple of m sappropriation
of funds or gouging of consuners. He said he felt the process
Chugach Electric went through in the rate case was entirely
appropri ate.

Number 1033

VI CE CHAIR GATTO asked: If this legislation had been in place,
woul d that process have proceeded exactly as it did?

MR GRIFFITH said yes, since those contracts weren't under a
JAA He said even if the contracts were transferred, the
contractual |anguage would remain the sane.

Nunmber 0978

TOM LOVAS, Chief Executive Oficer, Four Dam Pool Power Agency,
testified, saying he was participating to understand the
requests of this legislation, to gather information, and to
understand the conditions surrounding the request for this
| egi sl ati on. He also wanted to present information wth regard
to the potential inpact of HB 453 on the Four Dam Pool Power
Agency, now the sole JAA in operation in Al aska under the
aut hori zing | egi slation.

MR. LOVAS said HB 453 was not specifically initiated by the Four

Dam Pool Power Agency, but rather by the Railbelt wutilities
previ ously nentioned. The board of directors of the Four Dam

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2004



Pool Power Agency hadn't yet taken a position on this
| egislation, and thus he wasn't there to either support or
oppose it.

MR. LOVAS inforned the conmittee that he did not think this
| egislation, as it was described, would affect the Four Dam Pool
Agency at this tinme, but it mght in the future when it could be
beneficial if the agency added additional projects to the four
hydroel ectric units currently operated under the agency
framework, or if the Four Dam Pool Power Agency began to provide
power to nonnmenbers of the agency directly. He expl ai ned t hat
presently all sales at the wholesale level from the agency's
projects flow to the initial nenbers of the agency, which are
the ultimate distribution utilities of that power. They nmake no
sales other than to nenbers of the agency, except for
interruptible arrangenents that may be from surplus energy. But
those, too, are organized through and by the initial nenbers of
t he agency. Consequently, whol esal e power transactions of the
Four Dam Pool Power Agency are only within the nenbership of the
agency itself and not a third party.

MR. LOVAS explained that the priority of the projects is to
deliver power to those nenbers and only those nenbers of the
agency, each of which participates in the determ nation of the
budgets, rates, and charges. Sales of any surplus to third
parties are only by unani nous agreenent of the nenbers of the
agency. Their projects are governed by a power sales agreenent
that was preexisting with the State of Al aska and continued on
through the arrangenents by which the agency could acquire
projects from the state for the purposes of the nenber
utilities. M. Lovas said the authorizing legislation of the
initial project currently serves their needs and provides the
exenption fromregulation that coincides with the exenption that
occurred in the prior projects, when they were owned by the
State of Al aska, under the power sal es agreenent.

[Vice Chair Gatto returned the gavel to Chair Anderson.]

Nunmber 0772

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG recalled the negotiations and the
difficulties with organizing the first JAA He asked M. Lovas
if the Four Dam Pool and the l|egislation establishing that JAA

was the first one in Al aska. He al so wanted to know if the Four
Dam Pool Power Project was regul ated.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2004



MR. LOVAS replied that his conpany was the first JAA in the
state. It is regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commssion (FERC) wth regard to the hydroelectric project
| i censi ng issues. It is exenpt fromrate regulation by the RCA
under the terns of the existing legislation until such tine as
any debt on the projects is fully paid.

Number 0700

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for the rationale behind this
arrangenent .

MR. LOVAS responded that the original arrangenent by which the
pool was fornmed included exenption fromrate regulation for the
Four Dam Pool itself, while the projects were owned and operated
on behalf of the wutilities by the State of Al aska. That
| ongstandi ng  arrangenent has continued on through this
transacti on whereby the agency becones the owner in |lieu of the
State of Alaska. |It's a continuation of a historical frameworKk.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, "Is the theory that the pool has
an existing contractual relationship in place, but then if
there's any transfer of your comodity, your energy, Iit's
bet ween nenbers that are already nmenbers to the agreenent?”

MR. LOVAS affirmed that. The power sal es agreenent was specific
in that the power from the projects could only be used for the
purposes of the nenbers of the pool that was originally
est abli shed back in the m d-1980s. There was no nechanism for
the agency to nove power from the hydroelectric projects that
are incorporated in this to a third party that's not a nenber of
the agency itself.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how many of the Four Dam Pool
Power Agency generators are tied to the grid.

MR. LOVAS replied that none are tied together with the grid at
this point, other than the delivery to the local distribution
cooperatives or municipalities.

Nunber 0600
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that even though they have a JAA,

they don't have a traditional grid whereby they can sell power
back and forth fromone | ocation to another.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2004



MR. LOVAS concurred. He noted that devel opnent projects

underway would interconnect service territories, but the
priority obligation to the power would still apply from each
project to the initial nenber that was involved wth that
proj ect. He said there was one exception that mght develop, a

potential segnent of transm ssion from Petersburg to Kake; this
woul d i nvolve surplus power, not the priority power that goes to
t he nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Lovas, if he nmade a third-
party sale, whether he'd have to have the unani nous consent of
the nenbership, and whether this wwuld be a regulated
arrangenment with the third party.

MR, LOVAS replied that was correct, saying it could only be for
power not otherwi se required by the nenbers. He didn't believe
such a sal e woul d be regul at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Lovas why a JAA nodel was
adopted for the Four Dam Pool Power Agency.

MR. LOVAS said the Four Dam Pool term was devel oped at the tine
the long-term power sales agreenent was established anong the
five purchasing utilities of the project. He believed that term
had continued to be carried forward into the JAA as a matter of
famliarity.

Number 0423

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG restated his question: "Why did you
becone a joint action agency?"

MR. LOVAS replied that it was a nechanism available within the
state legislation, with statutes that provide a neans by which a
nunber of public utilities would cone together for the purpose
of owning and operating a project on their behalf. There was a
prior, available alternative to establish a franmework.

Nunmber 0367

MR. GRIFFI TH of Chugach Electric said, "This is a very sinple
change in the statutes we're asking for." He said he feels the
JAA is an organization whose tinme has cone. The energy task

force had comented on the need for a joint system operator of
sone nature. M. Giffith said M& and GVEA are saying they
want to be the joint system operator; they recognize the costs

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 27, 2004



and the challenges and are ready to act. He warned the
commttee that there was no tine to dally.

MR. GRIFFITH suggested it would be advantageous to not be
regul ated in the whol esale sale of power, but to be regulated in
generation and transmssion assets only; he felt this was
appropriate because the resulting contracts would be between
willing sellers and willing buyers, and contract |aw provides
for adjudicating contract disputes in superior court. He did
not feel that these contracts required regulation. He explained
that this bill would renove the "regulatory burden off of this
fledgling entity that we're creating.” He told the commttee
the burden consists of having to hire attorneys and build cases;
these activities are expensive and tine consum ng, and woul dn't
allow the JAA to be financially flexible.

MR CGRIFFITH referred to his own rate case that Vice Chair Gtto
had brought up, and commented that it cost Railbelt custoners in
the neighborhood of $5 mllion. He said this nobney was
"absol utely nonproductive" and that he didn't think wholesale
contracts ought to be saddled wth regulation. He said the
underpinning of Alaska's econony is the electrical system and
that the financing needed |ack of regulation. He pointed out
that the courts are there to handl e di sputes.

Nunmber 0087

CHAI R ANDERSON remarked that there'd be debate because of the
many people involved in this process. He had two questions, he
noted, and said, "One was the idea that, do you really need to
make this a statute, do you really need to codify this at this
time? Can't you already acconplish this w thout codification?"

MR CRIFFITH replied that they could create a JAA today w thout
codification. He wasn't sure whether it would be regul at ed.

TAPE 04-21, SIDE A
Number 0040

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whether, w thout regulation, the consuner
woul d be hurt.

MR. GRIFFITH responded that this wouldn't happen because his
group woul dn't use poor business practices. He said they have a
very low margin and would be wholly owned subsidiaries of
publicly owned and publicly governed entities. He said he
couldn't imagine the boards of the utilities that would own the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 27, 2004



JAA, or the assenbly of the municipality, allow ng sonebody to
go out and gouge its own nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Chugach Electric is currently
regul ated for whol esal e sal es of power.

MR GRIFFITH replied yes, by virtue of the whol esale contracts
it has, because it has required that in the contracts.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if it is regulated by RCA by
contract or statute.

MR GRIFFITH replied that it is regulated by RCA by contract,
but he believes the statutes were unclear about regulation on
t he whol esal e sal e of power.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if nost utilities in the country
are privately held.

MR GRIFFITH said nost of the power in the US. is owned by
publicly held corporations owed by investors, and many of those
are regul at ed.

Number 0224

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for <clarification on whol esale
sal es regul ati on

MR. GRIFFI TH responded, "In the main, it is unregulated and sold
on alnmost a spot-nmarket basis over several |arge power pools.”
He added, "The United States is fairly well wred together,
except for Alaska."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said this legislation would allow them
to set up a JAA and exenpt them from regulation, but he was
unclear as to the intent of the |egislation.

Number 0320

JIM POSEY, Cener al Manager , Muni ci pal Li ght and Power,
Anchorage, testified in support of HB 453, saying the intention
of HB 453 is to deregul ate.

MR CRIFFITH said it was their intention to create a JAA, and
they could do this under existing statute, but were suggesting
it would be a better business proposition to be unregul ated by
t he RCA He said they would beconme the unified system operator

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 27, 2004



referred to in the energy task force report. He added they
woul d participate in joint upgrading projects and new power-
generation facilities.

Nunmber 0393
VI CE CHAI R GATTO sai d:

You nentioned a willing buyer and a willing seller.
lmagine ... that we were living in a Bush community
and had one store. W would still have a wlling
buyer and a willing seller, but the store certainly
woul d still have the ability to make ... virtually any
price. ... They would certainly be able to raise the
price easily, wouldn't it?

MR GRIFFITH replied that since they were unregulated, they
could set any price they chose.

Nunmber 0455
VI CE CHAI R GATTO st at ed:

| guess that's what troubles ne about whenever we

establish a wutility. W really need to nmaintain a
regul atory authority over a utility. O course, as |
mentioned wearlier, ny <concern is to renobve the
regulatory ... authority and yet leave the utility in

pl ace to establish, conceivably, it's own whol esale
power rates.

So, let me go to another thought. ... [If, indeed,
we've | ooked at future power costs, would they then
still be controlled or sonehow maintained by sone
regul atory authority when these existing contracts
expi red?

MR CRIFFITH answered that if the JAA makes the contract and
this legislation is approved, then the answer is yes, post-2014.

Number 0546

TUCKERVAN BABCOCK, Manager of Governnment and Strategic Affairs,
Mat anuska El ectric Association (MEA), testified that MEA opposes
this bill, sees no reason to anmend the existing statute, and
believes it provides for the creation of a JAA He comment ed
"The three utilities on line today that are intending to do that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 27, 2004



are perfectly welconme to do so. They do not need to be
deregulated from the State of Alaska and the regulatory
comm ssion in order to acconplish that goal.”™ He asserted that
it was a msrepresentation of the energy task force report to
claimthat these three utilities, acting together to forma JAA
sonehow would realize the recomendations of that report.
Uging the conmttee to read the report, he explained that the
task force recommended a wunified system operator, not an
unregul ated JAA

MR. BABCOCK said MEA is concerned because it is the biggest
consuner in the Railbelt and has an all-requirenents contract
wi th Chugach Electric that expires in 2014. He said he believes
MEA' s perspective is really that of a consuner, as opposed to
| ooking for a way to maximze investnment on generation and
transm ssi on. Thus MEA doesn't see value in the legislature's
taking this special step to exenpt this JAA from regul ation.
Each of these utilities, under current state law, could go to
its own nenbers today and request permssion to deregul ate.
However , he  suggest ed, they've chosen to  support t he
"l egi slative end-run around their own nenber owners."

MR. BABCOCK said he didn't feel this action boded well for the
consuner; even if the comittee wshed to analyze this
| egislation, anything of this significance should take nore
consideration and caution before making such a mmjor change to
how the utilities in the Railbelt are regulated. He nentioned
the need for the conmttee to make sure consunmers and the nenber
owners of these cooperatives are protected.

Nunber 0723

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that a JAA's nenbers are the
utility conpanies nenbers, so why would their nenbers not
automatically vote to deregul ate thensel ves?

MR. BABCOCK repl i ed:

The various utilities that want to create the joint
action agency t hensel ves becone econom cally
der egul at ed. Once the menbership has done that, |
think you would be nore secure as a legislature in
agreeing to anend the joint action agency statute to
have the joint action agency itself be unregul ated.
But at this point what you have before you are
nmonopoly utilities looking for a way to [have] aspect
of their business to be unregulated by the consuner

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 27, 2004



protection agency. And that makes Matanuska Electric
Very nervous.

Nunmber 0785

VICE CHAIR GATTO said MEA is a nmjor whol esal e purchaser and is
at the receiving end of contracts. He referred to a letter from
the RCA and asked that it be read into the record. It stated
[original punctuation provided]:

The Regulatory Conmi ssion of Alaska is opposed to
HB 453. This legislation holds the potential to
exenpt from regulatory oversight nost new electrical
generation in the Railbelt in future years. The only
effect of HB 453 is to provide an exenption from all
forms of regulatory oversight - this |egislation does
nothing to otherw se enhance the functioning of joint
action agencies or define their operations. From t he
perspective of the RCA, HB 453 provides no tangible or
measurabl e benefits to the consumng public while at
the sanme tinme creates significant potential for the
abuse of nonopoly power in Alaska's nost capital-
i ntensive industry.

The principal joint action agency under Al aska law is
the entity created to nanage the "four-dam pool"”

assets whi ch wer e bui | t with di rect state
appropriations in the 1980's. This agency has
functioned reasonably well, but this has been the case

because of the unique circunstances which caused its
formati on. Under pi nning the formation of the four-dam
pool joint action agency was the fact that all of the
assets which were and are subject to agency managenent
were already constructed and that agreenents were
already in place for the purchase and sale of
whol esal e power from those projects. In sunmary, the
State, with heavy Legislative involvenent, determ ned
that these investnents were appropriate and that
managenment under the joint action agency concept was
the preferred course for the admnistration of these
facilities. AS 42.05.431(c) grants an exenption to
the four-dam pool agency from RCA jurisdiction but
that exenption is of limted duration.

In stark contrast, the exenption proposed in HB 453

woul d extend to an unknown nunber of new joint action
agencies for an undefined nunber of projects which

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 27, 2004



have not yet been planned, constructed, financed or
oper at ed. Further, the exenption wuld be of
unlimted duration.

If exenpt from RCA jurisdiction, new electrical
generation facilities in the Railbelt constructed
under the auspices of one or nore new joint action
agencies would not be subject to ANY independent
review as to (1) their necessity or prudence; (2) the
reasonabl eness of their operating expenses; or (3) the
rates to be charged for power produced from these

facilities. The RCA believes that a grant of such
sweeping authority would be unprecedented in Alaska's
hi story.

A variety of problems could arise under this
| egi slation which would be very difficult to correct
once significant resources had been invested in a
particul ar project. One area lies in the scope of
projects which mght be undertaken. For exanple, the
potential exists that a self-governed, unregulated
joint action agency could determ ne that the provision
of generation or transmssion facilities mght include
the construction of extensive private roadways,

pi pel i nes, or even railroads. No i ndependent
mechani sm would exist to control or question such
decisions or investnents. Simlarly, no direct

mechani sm would exist to control or question the
sizing of proposed plant investnments or their fuel
sour ces.

In the arena of operations and mai ntenance, no agency
could review the reasonableness or prudence of
expenses of joint action agency facilities. Any and
all expenses would be included in the wholesale rates
to be charged to power distributors on a "take it or
| eave it" basis.

The Legislature should understand that while joint
action agencies are identified in the final report of
the Energy Policy Task Force as a nmethod for wunified
system operation, the Task Force Report does not
mention or endorse the exenption of such agencies from
RCA regulation. The RCA agrees with the Energy Policy
Task Force recommendations that joint action agencies
can play a useful role in the planning, construction

and operation of new generation and transm ssion

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 27, 2004



facilities. In the view of the RCA, constructive use
of the joint action agency concept nmust include
statutory provisions as to the scope, governance, and
operation of such agencies. The conplete exenption of
such agencies from RCA jurisdiction does not solve any
identifiable problem except to satisfy a general
desire for the | essening of regul atory burdens.

The Legislature should understand that r egi onal
interests of one utility could induce generation and
transm ssion decisions which, while favorable to one

utility, are not in the overall public interest. The
State needs to retain over si ght of maj or
infrastructure decisions, and continued ratenaking
jurisdiction. Decisions on mjor infrastructure

projects are best reviewed either by the Legislature
or through an agency charged with siting and cost
anal ysis that enbraces the Railbelt as a whole. Thi s
will ensure major infrastructure decisions are nmade in
the public interest.

Multiple and serious costs to the consumng public
would arise from the blanket exenption proposed in
HB 453. HB 453 should not be enacted by the
Legi sl ature.

CHAI R ANDERSON surm sed that regul atory agencies would al ways be
opposed to deregul ati on.

Number 0844

MR. BABCOCK pointed out that any utility or JAA that invests in
generation and transm ssion is going to get a guaranteed return
in its rates that it's able to charge by the comm ssion. He
offered that the debate that MEA, Honer [Electric], and others
had wi th Chugach El ectric before the [RCA] on Chugach Electric's
| atest rate case was the anount Chugach Electric thought it
needed to increase rates for retail and for wholesale, and the
anount the RCA, after a few years of analysis, determned to be
actual ly reasonabl e rates.

MR. BABCOCK said, in fact, the commssion granted a rate
increase for Chugach Electric's retail consuners, although it
was smaller than the rate Chugach Electric had wanted. The
conmmi ssi on approved a rate decrease for the whol esal e custoners.
He suggested that regulation is the procedure that best protects

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 27, 2004



the consunmers in Alaska, and he urged the commttee not to
change it.

Nunmber 0895

CHAlI R ANDERSON asked for M. Babcock's reaction to Al aska Power
Associ ation's support of HB 453.

MR. BABCOCK replied that he was not surprised that nost nonopoly
utilities would like to be deregul at ed. He said M. Yould [of
Al aska Power Association] represented an associ ation of nonopoly

utilities. He related that if MEA were a big generation and
transmssion utility, it would probably be here as well, saying,
"Hey, great, deregulate us. W'd love to set our own rates
W thout any public scrutiny.” He characterized MEA as the

bi ggest consuner in the Railbelt and said that's the perspective
he brought to bear.

Nunmber 0982

MR. POSEY of M.&P spoke again in support of HB 453. He said a
year ago he becane aware that the state was |ooking for noney,
and thought they should have a conversation about what the state
was going to do with energy assets. He suggested the "Rail belt
fol ks" should be ready and should look for a tool in order to
accept assets such as the Alaska Intertie and Bradley Lake
[projects], if there is a decision to do that, "because taking
care of these assets takes ownership in order to invest noney."
He conti nued:

If the state wasn't going to be putting noney back
into infrastructure developnent, we - that is, the
Rail belt utility folks - had to be able to have a too
to acquire the assets and go out to the market in
order to repair and/or expand these group of assets.

That is the total purpose. W are also |ooking at the
Rai | belt energy study and the task force report that
says how nmuch investnent has to happen over the next
10 to 15 years. Once again, we need a vehicle because
all of us together nake one nediumsized utility in
the Lower 48. So if we can't band together to do sone
of these things, it would be very difficult for it to
happen at all. That dictates what happens to our
econony in the state of Al aska.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 27, 2004



We're not seeking to deregulate our distribution, and
M. Tuckerman said we can go and invoke the
menber shi p, but once you go for that, ... all of it's
deregul ated, not just the wholesale. AEA [ Al aska
Energy Authority] and AIDEA are not regulated for what
they do; they're basic assets. W're trying to walk
into their shoes in order to do the sane thing that
they can do, if the state is not going to nake major
investnments into infrastructure. That's the total,
real reason we're here today. And that answer is, we
would like to help ourselves with that toolbox, and
this piece would help us get that done.

Number 1094

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Posey how he would respond to the fear
that the consumer would pay the price in a nonopolistic arena.

MR. POSEY replied:

You heard Tom Lovas basically say that that's for
sal es between thenselves and the use of those assets
to provide for thenselves. It's basically not
regul at ed. For us, those things that we're trying to
do, the assets that we use, for ourselves and anyone
who wanted to contract with us, to do the sane thing
for a relative same price that we charge ourselves
woul d fall into that sane group.

O they can join the joint action agency and ... join
the larger group to do these things that have to be
done for the future investnments in our utilities - no

nore, no |ess. If you want to deal with the joint
action agency, you can join or you can buy from it.
But for our own purposes, we represent ... over 80
sone percent, 90 percent of production of the

electricity in the Railbelt, and a large portion of
the interests. Current contracts [are] not covered by
this at all. In fact, | think MEA is interested in
building their own generation after the 4/2014 date
They don't have to be unless they want to build their
generation as part of the joint action agency.

Number 1211

VI CE CHAI R GATTO sai d:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- February 27, 2004



It just rem nds ne of sonething: as a kid in a gang
they said, "You're either with ne or you' re against
me." \What you're saying sounds awful simlar to that,
that you can tell MEA "They can join us or you're

against us." | don't think that's a fair appraisal of
MEA' s position. Their positionis ... to supply power
at the Ilowest possible penny per Kkilowatt-hour to
their consuners. And they do that essentially by
buying from soneone else and reselling it. They do
the distribution costs, but, | think, ... about half
their cost is the purchase of power. So the purchase
price of their kilowatt has an enornous influence on
the rates that the custoners pay. Now, ... you

woul dn't characterize the RCA as being opposed to
noder ni zati on, woul d you?

MR. POSEY responded:

The various interests here are interested in reducing
the total costs of future generation and transm ssion.
And we can only do that if we band together in order
to nake these investnents. Anyone else who would Iike
to do that is free to do it. MEA has asked ne, if
they build new generation, will | buy from them ..
because they know they have to build to a certain
si ze. You read the task force report; it says
generation of this size should be built as a group.

It's not a gang. It's the recommendation of the
various task force that say, "Were are these areas?”
Fai r banks, and for the borough and the valley, they
need to act together as one group in order to do it -
not as a gang, but need to band together to do these
i nvestnents, just because of the total cost. And you
don't want to overbuild nor underbuild for that
future. It's not one gang agai nst one person. It's
followng that task force report, that all of us are
one nmediumsized utility in the Lower 48. And that
includes MEA. And if we don't work together, and | do
mean work together, we can't get there, not at a
reasonabl e price for all the consuners.

Number 1453
MARK JOHNSON, Conmm ssioner, Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska,

Departnent of Community and Regional Affairs, referred to the
position paper he'd submtted [text provided previously] and the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- February 27, 2004



inpact of this bill related to RCA jurisdiction, specifically,
two sections affected in AS 42.05. He expressed di sappoi ntnment
in this legislation, saying the comm ssion believes there is a
role for JAAs in carrying out identifiable needs in the energy
task force report, but this bill doesn't address any of the
problens identified in the report. He said RCA is against this
| egislation and believes it represents bad public policy.
[ HB 453 was hel d over. ]

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:25 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- February 27, 2004



